ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
April 5, 2016
9:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 324(STA)

"An Act relating to the Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board.

- MOVED CSHB 324( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 231(FIN)
"An Act extending the termnation date of the Board of
and providing for an effective date."
- HEARD & HELD
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Al aska Departnent of Corrections
Dean W I i anms- Comm ssi oner Desi gnee

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 324

SHORT TITLE: VI OLENT CRI MES COVPENSATI ON BOARD MEMBERSHI P
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LEDOUX

02/ 22/ 16 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 22/ 16 (H) STA

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- Apri

Par ol e;

5, 2016



03/ 24/ 16 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 24/ 16 (H) Moved CSHB 324(STA) Qut of Committee

03/ 24/ 16 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 25/ 16 (H) STA RPT CS(STA) 7DP

03/ 25/ 16 (H) DP: SPOHNHOLZ, STUTES, KELLER
TALERI CO, VAZQUEZ, KREI SS- TOMKINS, LYNN

03/ 30/ 16 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 30/ 16 (H) VERS|I ON:  CSHB 324( STA)

04/ 01/ 16 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

04/ 01/ 16 (S) STA

04/ 05/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: HB 231

SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND BOARD OF PAROLE
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LYNN

01/ 19/ 16 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 8/ 16

01/ 19/ 16 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 19/ 16 (H) STA, FIN

01/ 21/ 16 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 21/ 16 (H Moved HB 231 Qut of Committee

01/ 21/ 16 (H M NUTE( STA)

01/ 22/ 16 (H STA RPT 7DP

01/ 22/ 16 (H DP: TALERI CO, STUTES, VAZQUEZ,
GRUENBERG, KREI SS- TOWKI' NS, LYNN, KELLER

03/ 15/ 16 (H FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 15/ 16 (H Heard & Held

03/ 15/ 16 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 24/ 16 (H FIN AT 9: 30 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 24/ 16 (H Moved CSHB 231(FIN) Qut of Conmittee

03/ 24/ 16 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 25/ 16 (H FIN RPT CS(FIN) 8DP

03/ 25/ 16 (H DP: SADDLER, KAWASAKI, PRU TT, GARA,
W LSON, GUTTENBERG, MJUNCQZ, THOVPSON

03/ 29/ 16 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 29/ 16 (H VERSI ON:  CSHB 231(FI N)

03/ 30/ 16 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

03/ 30/ 16 (S) STA, FIN

04/ 05/ 16 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 324.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 5, 2016



COURTNEY ENRI GHT, Staff

Represent ati ve LeDoux

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed questions regardi ng HB 324.

GERAD GODFREY, Chai rman

Vi ol ent Crines Conpensation Board

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Di scussed the need for HB 324.

KATE HUDSON, Executive Director

Vi ol ent Crines Conpensation Board

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Concurred with M. Godfrey's testinony.

ESTHER M ELKE, St aff

Representative Lynn

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overview of HB 231.

KRI'S CURTI S, Legislative Auditor

Legi slative Audit Division

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed HB 231 and reviewed the audit for
t he Al aska Board of Parole.

JEFF EDWARDS, Executive D rector

Al aska Board of Parole

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed HB 231 and reviewed the audit for
t he Al aska Board of Parole.

DEAN W LLI AM5, Comm ssi oner - Desi gnee

Al aska Departnent of Corrections

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed guesti ons regar di ng hi s
confirmati on as conmi ssi oner.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
9:04: 15 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:04 a.m Present at the call to

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 5, 2016



order were Senators McG@uire, Coghill, Huggins, Welechowski, and
Chair Stoltze

HB 324-VI OLENT CRI MES COVPENSATI ON BOARD MEMBERSHI P

9: 05: 23 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of HB 324.

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX, Alaska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska, explained that HB 324 anmends the nenbership of
the Violent Crines Conpensation Board in order to give the board
flexibility in recruitnment. She detailed that the board had
problenms recruiting for the nedical doctor or osteopathic
physi ci an board nenber designation. She revealed that HB 324
would add either a physician assistant or advanced nurse
practitioner to increase the pool of people.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if the change included retired physicians.

9:07: 21 AM

COURTNEY ENRIGHT, Staff, Representative LeDoux, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, replied that the change was just a
wor di ng change and the board had previously been allowed to have
retired physicians.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if a doctor retired from active practice
with a suspended |icense would qualify.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX replied that nenbership currently reads
"retired." She surmsed that a retired doctor with a suspended
| icense probably would not qualify.

CHAIR STOLTZE specified that he neant voluntary ||icense
suspension, simlar to suspending one's insurance.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX answered correct.

9:08: 57 AM

GERAD GODFREY, Chairman, Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board,
Anchorage, Al aska, stated that he would provide background
information on what necessitated HB 324. He detailed that on
three occasions during his 1l4-year tenure the board could not
fill the statutorily-required seat for a nedical doctor. He
noted that the board has three nenbers and a quorum was possible
with two nmenbers, but a nedically-trained person brought insight
and experience to the neetings. He specified that a nedically

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- April 5, 2016



trai ned person could look at medical billing records, understand
the scope of injuries from the crinme, or identify individuals
that wuse the incident to have the state pay for their
prescription drug addiction.

MR, GODFREY sunmarized that the board has experienced chall enges
in getting a practicing physician to conmt the tinme required
for the nedical -doctor's board seat. He said expandi ng the scope
of medical expertise that would be qualified to serve on the
board would make it easier to find sonmeone to commt the tinmne.

9:13: 55 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE conmended Dr. Regina Chennault for her past
contribution as a board nenber for the Violent Crines
Conpensat i on Board.

9:15: 54 AM
MR. GODFREY thanked Chair Stoltze for being an advocate for the
Vi olent Crines Conpensati on Board.

9:17: 17 AM
KATE HUDSON, Executive Director, Violent Cinmes Conpensation
Board, Juneau, Al aska, concurred with M. Godfrey's testinony.

CHAIR STOLTZE closed public testinony on HB 324. He asked M.
Hudson to discuss the board's funding from the Permanent Fund
and the possible funding inpact fromthe proposed changes to the
Per manent Fund.

9:19: 00 AM

IVS. HUDSON acknowl edged that funding does <cone from the
Per manent Fund. She specified that the board has two funding
sources: wthheld dividends to incarcerated felons in addition
to state and federal funding. She concurred that changes to the
Per manent Fund dividend would inpact the way the board was
funded. She noted that the fiscal notes were indeterm nate due
to the various bills that affect the Permanent Fund.

CHAI R STOLTZE pointed out that the bill has a zero-fiscal note.
9:21:14 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL noved to report the CS for HB 324(STA) from
committee with individual recomendations and attached zero-
fiscal note.

9:21:21 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 5, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE announced that hearing no objection,
noved from comittee.

9:21: 37 AM
At ease.

HB 231- EXTEND BOARD OF PAROLE

9:24: 09 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE called the commttee back to order
t he consi derati on of HB 231.

9:24:51 AM

ESTHER M ELKE, Staff, Representative Bob Lynn,
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Alaska, read the sponsor
fol |l ows:

CSSB 234( STA)

and announced

Al aska State
statenent as

The Board of Parole currently serves in Alaska as the
authority over parole setting; it is currently set
HB 231
but the
nost current version of the bill which was passed by

statute to be termnated on June 30, 2016.
originally extended the date to June 30, 2022,

House Finance extends it to June 30, 2021;
5-year extension.

this

in

is a

The Division of Audit did an audit on the Board of
Parol e |l ast year and the audit includes an exam nation
of the board's performance in light of the 11-sunset
criteria of points provided within the Al aska statute.

The Division of Audit found the board to be

their operations which address:

in good
standi ng, but provided four recommendations to inprove

1. The accuracy and consistency of the information

contained in parole files;

2. Docunent ati on of victim and
notifications;

3. Deficiencies in proposed regulation
nmet hods;

of f ender

changes

4. The security of the Departnment of Corrections'

i nformati on system

In response to the audit, the Board of Parole provided
i kew se,

responses to the identified recomrendati ons;

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6-

Apri

5, 2016



the Departnment of Corrections generally agreed wth
t he reconmendati ons.

HB 231 fulfills the constitutional requirenment that
the state establish a parole system and accordingly
assi st in keeping Al askans safe.

As you can see the bill also has a fiscal note which
covers the board's operating costs which were included
in the recently passed budget.

9:26: 36 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked Ms. Melke to explain the change in the
ext ensi on date.

M5. M ELKE explained that typically the Board of Parole was
extended for eight years, but the D vision of Audit suggested a

si x-year extension due to the crime bill that was passed. She
noted that the current version of the bill was anmended to five
years.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked Ms. Melke to verify that the change was
made i n House Fi nance.

M5. M ELKE answered yes.

9:28:30 AM

KRIS CURTIS, Legislative Auditor, Legislative Audit D vision,
Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Alaska, explained that the
di vision | ooked at whether the Board of Parole was serving the
public's interest and whether it should be extended. She set
forth that the division concluded that the Board of Parole net
the constitutional requirenment that the state establish a parole
system in addition to operating in a professional and efficient
manner . She stated that the Legislative Audit Di vi si on
recoomended a  six-year extension and added that four
recommendati ons were presented for operational inprovenents.

She specified that the first recommendation was for the
executive director to inprove procedures to ensure the required
docunentation for parole hearings was accurate and consistently
included parole files. She detailed that the division |ooked at
38-discretionary parole hearing files and several errors were
found such as risk assessnent fornms not being tabulated
correctly and parole applications were mssing. She pointed out
that the division reconmended a general docunentation clean-up
because the errors did not inpact the risk assessnent.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- April 5, 2016



M5. CURTIS explained that the second reconmendation was for the

executive director, in coordination with the Departnent of
Corrections' managenent, to inplenment docunmentation standards to
ensure all offenders’' and victinms' notifications are nade in

accordance to statutory requirenents. She reveal ed that based on
a sanple of parole files, the division found a general |ack of
docunentation that offenders and victins were being notified of
board hearings as required by law She said the division
believes that notifications were happening because conplaints
were not evident, but notifications could not be verified due to
a |lack of docunentati on.

She detailed that the third recormmendation was for the board to
ensure proposed regulations and all statutory requirenments were
addressed related to its duties. She noted that t he
recomendati on was a housekeeping type of recomendation. She
explained that a statute requires the board to establish
regul ati on standards under which the suitability of a prisoner
for parole should be determ ned. She revealed that the
regulations in place during the audit described the risk
assessnment matrix that had been used for many years as the tool;
however, the board inplenented a new risk assessnent tool in
2014 called the Level of Service lInventory-Revised (LSI-R) tool.
She di vul ged that when the board went to change the regulations,
the Departnent of Law reconmended that any tool not be included
in order to avoid the trouble of changing regulations in the
future. She remarked that while the Departnent of Laws
recomrendati on was reasonable and efficient, the recomendation
does not conply with statute.

She explained that the fourth recomendation was for the
Department of Corrections Admnistrative Services Division's
director take steps to ensure that their Ofender Managenent
System conplied with security best practices. She reveal ed that
the division withheld details for the security finding to avoid
exploitation. She specified that the Legislative Audit Division
provi ded details to the Departnent of Corrections and corrective
action was taken.

She sunmarized that the Departnment of Corrections and the Board
of Parole <concurred wth the Legislative Audit Division's
recomendat i ons.

9:32: 06 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that Ms. Curtis' audit gave a short shrift
to victinms' rights. He opined that an abridgenent of prisoners

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 5, 2016



rights would have received a bigger section in the audit. He
pointed out that victins' rights was a prom nent part of the
state's constitution. He added that he was not sure if the audit
reflected the seriousness of the violation.

M5. CURTIS replied that the notifications would have been worded
very strongly if the Legislative Audit Division really felt that
notifications were not happening. She specified that the
recommendation boiled down to a problem with the Departnent of
Corrections not using the managenent system for docunentation on
the officer or institutional levels. She said the Legislative
Audit Division believed that notifications were happening, but
people were not taking the tinme to docunment how and when the
notifications wer e happeni ng. She summari zed t hat t he
Legi sl ative Audi t Di vi si on t hought t hat notifications
recommendati on was a procedural issue as opposed to a victim or
of f ender i ssue.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the Legislative Audit D vision had
contact with the Alaska Ofice of Victins' R ghts on the
notification issue.

M5. CURTIS answered no. She specified that the Legislative Audit
Division kept its interactions with the board and the Departnent
of Corrections.

SENATOR MCGUI RE requested to address the executive director for
the Al aska Board of Parole. She asked that M. Edwards address
the four recommendations from the Legislative Audit D vision.
She specified that the two areas that caused her the nost
consternati on were reconmendations 1 and 2.

She addressed Recommendation 1 and asked what M. Edwards was
doing to respond to the audit in the area of risk assessnent
forms. She stated that she was concerned that SB 91 woul d expand
the work the Board of Parole would do with notifications and
pointed out that errors were currently occurring. She remarked
that SB 91 would also increase reliance on risk assessnent as a
tool as opposed to a sinple financial requirenent.

She stated that she shared Chair Stoltze's concern regarding
Recommendation 2 on notifying both parolees and victins. She
remarked that in many cases notifications were not occurring or
at a mnimumwere not occurring in |less than 30 days in advance.

9:34:19 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 5, 2016



JEFF EDWARDS, Executive Director, Alaska Board of Parole,
Anchor age, Al aska, addressed Recommendation 1 and noted that the
audit occurred when the board used an old risk-assessnent tool
that was developed in the late 70s. He revealed that the board
brought in an expert and decided to change to the LSI-R
eval uation tool that was used by the Departnment of Corrections.
He remarked that LSI-R was a dynamic, data-driven tool that
anal yzed up-to-date and accurate information.

9:39:47 AM

He concurred that SB 91 will have a significant inpact on the
Board of Parole. He opined that the Alaska Crimnal Justice
Comm ssion attenpted to recognize that the Board of Parole has
an active role in corrections and crimnal justice. He pointed
out that the Board of Parole was one of the only agencies that
can actually release inmates early from prison

He set forth that the board was happy with its process. He noted
that the board's recidivism rate was only 5 percent on
discretionary parole or early release. He disclosed that the
board has been trying to nove in the directions that SB 91 has
outlined. He remarked that SB 91 solidifies legislatively the
direction the board will be noving into.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked that M. Edwards address Recommendation 2
and respond to the many errors nade in the victim and offender
notifications as well as why parole was not granted.

9:42:48 AM

MR. EDWARDS replied that the audit nentioned that the victim
notifications were not docunented along wth the prisoner
notification of granting or not granting parole. He said the
board acknow edges that docunentation should have occurred. He
set forth that victinms were included and the board was very open
and transparent during the victim process.

He stated that staff has been directed to conduct an exhaustive
review of every parole-applicant information packet to ensure
notifications are going out. He added that the board has worked
with the Dvision of Institutions for the Departnent of
Corrections in opening and expanding a know edge base for a
specific area in the Ofender Managenent System that i ncludes
victim notification, dates when paperwork was sent out, and
officer commentary. He revealed that the officer commentary was
included in the board' s parole information packets as well as
comments made by each victim

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- April 5, 2016



MR. EDWARDS stated that victins have an inpact on the parole
system He said the board highly encourages victins to either
comment in-person, telephonically, or in witing. He said the
board makes every attenpt to be inclusive and transparent. He
pointed out that the board has a pretty good relationship with
the Alaska Ofice of Victinms' Rights. He asserted that the board
takes victins' statenments very seriously. He admtted that
victinms that testify before the board was an enotional event at
times and the board tries to be as sensitive as it can. He
voiced that the board feels that the docunentation system has
been inproved to nmakes sure there is a paperwork trail of dates,
times, and any comrents made.

9:45: 57 AM

SENATOR MCGUIRE stated that she appreciated M. Edward's
expl anation on Recommendation 2. She said she encouraged her
coll eagues to follow up prior to the sunset. She set forth that
victim notification should have a zero-failure rate. She noted
that one victim was not provided wth an offender-release
notification. She pointed out that the state has very high rates
of donestic violence and assault. She remarked that she could
not imagine if the victim was a nenber of her famly and they
were not notified.

CHAIR STOLTZE asserted that correctional officers did not
provi de enough input on the issues of parole, probation, and
furl oughs. He opined that correctional officers know the innmates
the best and asked how their input mght be augnented in a
formal or informal fashion.

MR. EDWARDS revealed that he was a correctional officer at a
maxi mum security prison 16 years ago. He detailed that he lived
with the inmates and recognized their challenges. He explained
that a correctional officer gains a certain know edge and
respect through professional interaction wth innates. He
revealed that the board currently accepted witten testinony or
statenents from correctional staff on behalf of particular
inmates. He said including inmate input was not necessarily
mandated, but the board would be happy to |ook at having
correctional officers as part of the process. He disclosed that
the board consisted of two former correctional officers that
share the sane interests and ideology as he does. He set forth
that the board was inclusive and welconmed expanding its
i nclusiveness to the correctional staff because he agreed that
they offer insight as to day-to-day operations.

9:48: 50 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- April 5, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE specified that guard input would provide both
positive and negative input. He stated that guards probably know
whi ch prisoners were very redeemabl e and rehabilitable.

SENATOR MCGUI RE thanked M. Edwards for his coments on SB 91
and his work towards making the Board of Parole better. She
shared that the Legislature was looking into the high-cost
category of parole revocations and denials. She asked that M.
Edward think about Recommendation 1 regarding the |ack of
comuni cation regarding parole violations and the category's
hi gh cost inpact to the state.

MR. EDWARDS replied that he appreciated Senator MQiire's
comments and woul d adhere to her recomendati on.

9:51: 00 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE cl osed public testinony on HB 231.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked when an audit conmences prior to a sunset
dat e.

M5. CURTI S explained that audit tinelines differ between boards,
commi ssion and entities with sunset dates. She specified that
the audit for the Board of Parole was conducted the year before
the 2016 sunset date.

SENATOR COGHI LL pointed out that the Board of Parole was nmaking
changes as well as possible changes from pending | egislation. He
asked if a 2021 sunset date would trigger an audit in 2020.

M5. CURTIS answered that work would start in 2021. She noted
that she was approached with a one-year termnation date and
remarked that she did not know if the Legislative Audit Division
currently had the resources to do an audit in one year. She
revealed that in order to evaluate a board there has to be a
certain nunber of years which the board can acconplish what was
in SB 91 to actually be able to review the bill's inpact on the
board. She disclosed that she advocated for a three-year m ni num
before the Legislative Audit Division goes back in. She pointed
out that the audit's six-year reconmmendation was not reflective
of SB 91 because the bill was not in play during the audit, but
the Legislative Audit Division thought |egislative oversight
earlier than the maxi mum eight years was prudent and with the
i npl enentation of the new risk assessnent tool, the division
settled on six years; however, an earlier audit in light of SB
91 made a | ot of sense.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- April 5, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE stated that he favored a shorter tineline, but
noted that the commttee was not naking a final decision because
the finance commttee was a safety in changing if necessary.

9:54:56 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced HB 231 woul d be held in commttee.
9:55: 13 AM
At ease.
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG
Departnent of Corrections
10: 04: 50 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE called the commttee back to order. He announced
that the commttee would conduct a confirmation hearing for Dean
WIllians as Conm ssioner of the Departnment of Corrections. He
called attention to a letter and asked if Comm ssioner WIIlians
received it.

10: 05: 48 AM

DEAN W LLI AVS, Comm ssi oner - Desi gnee, Al aska Departnent of
Corrections, Anchorage, Alaska, replied that he had not seen the
letter.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if Commissioner WIllians would |ike a copy
of it.

COWM SSI ONER W LLI AMS answered yes, but noted that he felt
rushed in digesting the information and comrenting during the
nmeet i ng.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the letter was discussed in the previous
committee.

COW SSI ONER W LLI AMS answer ed no.

CHAI R STOLTZE pointed out that in all fairness, the letter cane
out the previous day and Conm ssioner WIlianms could cone back
to respond.

10: 06: 32 AM
COWM SSI ONER W LLI AVS replied that he would answer any questions
pertaining to the letter.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- April 5, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE commented that his intent was to nake sure the
letter was part of the docunent and assuned that others had seen
it. He said questions would be dealt with as they cane up.

COWM SSI ONER W LLI AM5 acknow edged that there were people in the
room that both supported him as well as preferred sonmeone el se.
He announced that his intention was to l|lead both groups and
noted that he understood why sone skeptics were unsure why he
was before the commttee.

CHAIR STOLTZE said the commttee's jurisdiction was the reason
why Conmi ssioner WIllianms was before the commttee.

10: 08: 04 AM

COM SSI ONER W LLIAMS concurred with Chair Stoltze and noted
that his intention was to acknow edge all of the people, no
matter where they stood.

He detailed that he retired four years ago as a Tier-1 enployee
after noving up in the juvenile correctional world and having a
good experience in the Departnment of Law. He detailed his
curriculumvitae as foll ows:

» Paralegal investigator for the district attorney's office
in None and Kot zebue.

* Wirked on sex cases in Nonme and Kotzebue preparing grand
jury cases, interviewing w tnesses and addressing a nyriad
of issues.

e Served as a certified reserve police officer.

* Mved from operating the state's smallest juvenile facility
to the | argest.

 Did reform work at the end of his career in terns of
devel oping a school program to keep kids out of juvenile
facilities and prison.

He said upon retirenment his intention was to nove on and find a
"fun job." He detailed that after Governor Wl ker was el ected,
he was asked to be a special assistant in public safety. After
six nonths, he was asked to work directly for the governor as a
special assistant. He said an issue cane up with the Departnent
of Corrections and he suggested that the adm nistration needed
to know where the problens were at. He specified that the
governor asked him to do the review of the Departnent of
Corrections because he wanted soneone who had no other agenda
but to tell him the truth. He disclosed that the governor

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- April 5, 2016



prom sed that after the review that he would return as his
speci al assi stant.

COW SSIONER W LLI AVS detailed that after his review he was
asked to submit his name for consideration as conm ssioner for
the Department of Corrections and the governor made a decision
and chose him He set forth that because of everything that he
had seen, he wanted to do something as comm ssioner. He asserted
that the comm ssioner title was not the reason why he was before
the commttee. He stated that he would be happy to nake the
changes that he thought needed to be nade from another job, but
that was not what the calling was for him He said he thought a
very long tinme about venturing into such a difficult place
knowi ng that he had just done the review He admtted that he
did not enjoy the setup and he had great concern about it.

He sunmarized that his brief background overview enconpassed 36
years when he left Chio for a sunmer in Al aska in 1980.

10: 12: 54 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked what his goals were.

COM SSIONER W LLIAVMS replied that the departnent's staffing
situation was serious. He said forcing staff to work overtine
was a problem He disclosed that the previous conmm ssioner, M.
Taylor, had a study done on the departnment's staffing and the
study did a pretty thorough job on what the departnment should
have.

He suggested options to consider as foll ows:

1. Make sure the right people are in jail and the people who
can be dealt with outside should be out of jail.

2. Fill all of the correctional positions that the departnent
requested in the study to relieve staffing stress.

3. Send prisoners out of state and direct the savings to
bol ster areas where the departnment was suffering the nost.

10: 16: 19 AM
SENATOR MCGUI RE asked if the nedical officers were organized.

COM SSI ONER W LLI AM5 answered that nearly all of the nedica
officers were organized except for doctors and nurse
practitioners that were on contract.

SENATOR MCGUI RE concurred with Comm ssioner WIlliams report
that clearly there was a staffing issue. She asserted that

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 5, 2016



putting stress on an already stressful job by adding hours was
difficult. She added that another area was training and asked
that Comm ssioner WIlIlians address the broader shift in the
corrections systemfroma "warrior nodel" to a "guardi an nodel ."

SENATOR MCGUI RE detailed that her inquiry on nedical officers
pertained to finding out how many there were, how nmany were
needed, was the subject addressed, and what the intake
regul ations wer e. She opi ned t hat t he state has
deinstitutionalized the nmentally ill by going from a conmunity
based health-delivery systemto an inmate popul ation where 70 to
80 percent have an underlying nental-health problem She added
that on top of nental health was co-occurring addiction.

She set forth that an initial evaluation should occur if
Al aska's prisons were going to becone the state's nental
institutions and rehab facilities. She remarked that so nmany
deaths <could have been prevented by an initial intake to
determine if a person was deathly intoxicated and needed a
medical facility, or if a person was borderline schizophrenic
Wi th serious needs for mnedication.

10: 19: 57 AM

COM SSIONER W LLIAMS noted that he nentioned in his report
about the divided-command structures that has caused dysfunction
in nmedical situations at sonme facilities. He pointed out that
people wth expertise have retooled nedical care wthin
correctional facilities in other states and he was cuing up the
departnment to do the very sane thing.

He remarked that a lot of bad things that have occurred inside
the correctional facilities happened where fragile people wth
nmedi cal -care issues have cone in and hospitals, no disrespect to
hospitals, have not wanted to deal with it. He said one case
involving a death occurred in Fairbanks where a man was dri nking
hand-sanitizer, a situation that was not the only case. He noted
that a go-between issue played out in Bethel between the
hospital, police departnment, and the correctional officers. He
set forth that sonmeone else with better expertise should tel
the departnment what they think was happening. He asserted that
nei ther he nor the doctors in the departnent have the expertise.
He disclosed that in the past, hospitals have approached the
Depart ment of Corrections about mnedical care.

10: 22: 40 AM
He concurred that prisons have becone the de facto psychiatric
hospitals where people with schizophrenia, bipolar disorder and

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- April 5, 2016



serious care issues are brought into a jail setting. He asserted
that a jail was not a good treatnent environment for many people
and the issue presented special problens. He noted that he has
asked the person overseeing psychiatric-care issues to address
where the departnent was spending noney. He added that the
departnment was al so spending noney on substance abuse, a hugely
i nportant issue. He added that as a result for everything he has
seen, safety inside facilities for staff, inmates and the public
was also inportant. He said he has talked with staff and a rea
frustration existed that not enough attention has been given to
safety.

COWM SSI ONER W LLI AM5S summari zed that he does not have a nagic
fix on all the things he nentioned within in a short period of
time. He set forth that he does have a vision for where the
departnent was at and where the division needs to go. He
di sclosed that he has started to bring people in who see the
same vision and his hope was the staff was hearing that help was
on the way.

10: 24: 33 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that he had once spoken at a correctiona
of fi cer acadeny graduation and during his speech he had called
attention to t he adm nistration's responsibilities to
corrections officers and their famlies. He remarked that
corrections officers have been portrayed as a villainous class
in novies. He asserted that corrections officers have one of the
t oughest beats and fol ks do not know what goes on behind the
prison walls where officers spend 12 to 16-hour days. He pointed
out that Conmmi ssioner WIllianms said his biggest challenge around
staffing and personnel; however, a repeated criticism he has
heard from correctional officers is that Conmm ssioner WIIlians
has not nmet with them He asked that Conm ssioner WIIlians
address neeting with the Correctional Oficers Association.

10: 26: 38 AM

COM SSIONER W LLIAMS replied that he had net wth the
Correctional Oficers Association a nonth ago. He noted that his
current schedule did not allow himto return to Anchorage very
often, but he was planning on neeting with a representative with
the organi zation after the commttee neeting.

CHAIR STOLTZE replied that he was pleased that Conm ssioner
WIlliams was nmeeting with the Correctional Oficers Association.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- April 5, 2016



COM SSI ONER W LLI AMS commented that disagreeing was expected,
but a neeting with the Correctional Oficers Association was a
pl ace to start.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that he appreciated the constructive step
taken for neeting wwth the Correctional Oficers Association.

COM SSIONER W LLIAVMS noted that the Correctional Oficers
Associ ation presented a docunent on where they saw deficiencies
in staffing in addition to acknowl edging officers getting
assaul t ed. He remarked that there were sone areas of
di sagreenent in ternms of where he wanted the departnent to go;
however, he noted that he has been in an "information vacuunt
during his first two nonth. He summarized that he has no pride
in what he was doing in noving the departnment forward.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked i f Conmmi ssi oner WIIlianms meant "no
owner ship."

COM SSI ONER W LLIAMS agreed that he has "no pride in
ownership." He said he did not own the departnent, but rather
the departnent was owned by a bunch of people, including the
state. He remarked that the departnent was not for himto hold
with a tight fist, but to be operated openly. He detailed that
he asked two people to resign when he started, but pronoted two
individuals from within: Care Sullivan, Deputy Comr ssioner;
Bruce Busby, Director of Institutions. He stated that M.
Sullivan and M. Busby canme up through the ranks and were well
respected by their staff. He set forth that the biggest part of
his job was not what he does, but what folks like M. Sullivan
and M. Busby will do and continue to do beyond his tenure. He
opi ned that, "W've done the right thing so far."

10: 30: 57 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  thanked Conmi ssioner Wi llians for his
service and acknow edged his long history in the state working
in juvenile justice.

He revealed that he urged Conmm ssioner WIllians at their first
encounter to work with the corrections officers to try and hea
sonme of the wounds that existed. He said judging fromthe report
the commttee received, Conmm ssioner WIlliams did not work with
the corrections officers.

He referenced Comm ssioner WIllians' admnistrative review from

Novenber 2015 and remarked that the report was a scathing review
with some pretty big accusations |evel ed agai nst the corrections

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 5, 2016



officers. He noted that Commi ssioner WIlianms' report was a huge
news story that was carried by various news outlets. He pointed

out that the report wused the terns, "excessive force,"
“m sconduct,” and "lax or informal consequences for apparent
enpl oyee conduct,” ultimately leading to conmments from a public

outcry via nedia outlets and social networking sites where
corrections officers were threatened. He asserted that the
public outcry from Conmm ssioner WIllians' report was the reason
why so many corrections officer where in attendance at the
commttee neeting because they felt inproperly vilified.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  pointed out that Conmm ssioner WIIians'
report cited four deaths wthin the corrections system He
asserted that deaths wthin the corrections system were
obviously tragic and unfortunate events. He called attention to
a death cited in the report of a gentleman naned M. Kobuck. He
noted that Comm ssioner WIllians inplied that excessive force
was used on M. Kobuck and detailed the report's statenent as
fol | ows:

There does not appear to have been a clear and
i medi ate safety threat such as an assault or
attenpted escape to warrant the | evel of force used.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI added that Conm ssioner WIllianms noted in
the report that there was a personnel investigation in the
Kobuck case.

He remarked that when the public heard the things reported in
Comm ssioner WIllians' report, there was a concurrence in the
way M. Kobuck was handl ed; however, there was a whole different
side of the story that the public was not aware of.

He noted that the Departnent of Law conducted an investigation
that was done three nonths prior to Commissioner WIIians'
report. He revealed that the Departnent of Law investigation
concluded that charges were not nerited and detailed M.
Kobuck's charges as fol |l ows:

* First degree vehicle theft;

e Fourth degree theft;

e Driving with a suspended |icense;
* Reckl ess driving.

He added that M. Kobuck was in possession of a hypodermc

needle and noted that he indicated that he used heroin four
hours prior to his arrest. He detailed that the Anchorage Police

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- April 5, 2016



Departnment (APD) decided not to renove the needle from M.
Kobuck's pocket in order for the Departnment of Corrections to
address. He revealed that the Departnent of Law investigation
determined that M. Kobuck renmmined threatening to the APD
officers during the initial booking process. He detailed that
surveillance video from the incident shows M. Kobuck
threatening to kill the APD officers. He added that corrections
officers were also threatened in addition to M. Kobuck failing
to stop grabbing and fighting when ordered to stop.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked Conmmi ssioner WIlianms, knowng M.
Kobuck's actions during incarceration, if he felt there was a
clear and immedi ate safety threat to officers that warranted the
force that was used.

10: 36: 15 AM
COWMM SSI ONER W LLI AMS answered no and specified as foll ows:

No | don't and you brought up a lot and ny response
has to be rather lengthy in addition to who else is in
the roomw th ne.

First of all, the deputy attorney general who oversaw
the decision, | think is on the phone, in terns of
what they were finding in that report.

Secondly, | have the lieutenant of the training
acadeny here about what is trained and what is taught
in the acadeny because this has been a real bone of
contention and you're appropriate Senator W el echowski
for bringing the issue up and | appreciate it. But
here is what we have to understand and many of you
have been in either the prosecution business or |aw
busi ness know that crimnally, whether or not soneone
is charged with a crinme, is a whole separate thing
t han whether or not civilly and we acted appropriately
as a state agency, as a state governnment and in that
particular case, and oh by the way, a claim has
al ready been filed in that case against the state in
regards to the death of M. Kobuck. But let nme walk
through the differences between what you' ve asserted
and a chance you've giving ne to respond to it and |
appreciate it. I want to go with the second question
about how this inpacts in terns of the whole
relationship with the union and the mnenbers because
that's very inportant.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 5, 2016



There's a couple of things, first of all, what M.
Kobuck's interaction was with the police departnent
and what happens inside the doors once soneone is
admtted always is a difference. M. Kobuck was
handcuffed when this incident started with him he was
al ready handcuffed behind his back and there was not a
safety concern about getting himunder control and the
distinction between that is Lieutenant Wckof f,
[ Acadeny Supervisor, Alaska Department of Corrections
Training Acadeny], could explain nmuch better than I
could because he has |ooked at the incident very
carefully and he is in the room too. There's a
substantial difference between what happens out on the
street or when a situation is out of control and you
have to get control of it, things are going south,

t hat'

this
Let

s an entirely different threat scenario then what
was Wi th soneone who was already in the facility.

me address the issue of who he was yelling at, at

the police officers, etc. Yes he was yelling at the
police officers, I t hi nk, but upon Li eut enant
Wckoff's, and M. Hanlon and | are doing the review

quite

frankly considering whether or not he was

yelling at the police, he was mad at the police, a |ot
of people arrested are nmad at the police, but what
happens once he hits the door is an entirely different
matter. This situation was not out of control, he was
in handcuffs and you don't get on soneone's back who
is already in handcuffs.

10: 39: 08 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that he has gone on a police ride-al ong
and w tnessed handcuffed individuals that proceeded to Kkick,

gouge and

bite due to adrenalin-fuel ed rage because of drugs.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noted that a bl ood toxicology test was done

after M.
foll ow ng

Kobuck died and the results cane back positive for the
drugs:

Et hanol
Amphet am nes
Phenobar bi t al
Nor di azepam

Chl or di azepxi de

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- April 5, 2016



SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI added that M. Kobuck had a crimnal
hi story that goes back 20 years as foll ows:

e Five convictions for assault of conduct
e Two convictions for resisting arrest

e Challenged to fight corrections officers while previously
in prison

He noted that M. Kobuck's threats to kill people in the
corrections facility was on video tape wthout audio. He asked
Comm ssioner WIlliams to confirm that he renpoved the audio so
t hat people could not hear M. Kobuck's threats.

CHAI R STOLTZE pointed out that the conmttee-hearing proceedi ngs
were not being held in a courtroom He stated that he understood
the enotion, but asked that the exchange be done through the
chair.

10:41: 21 AM

COWM SSI ONER W LLI AMS replied that he was shocked that Senator
W el echowski would think that he purposely renoved the audio
from the video tape. He said he could debate and disagree with
Senator W el echowski about the premise that he was presenting
because the premse was not correct. He asked Senator
W el echowski to talk to Lieutenant Wckoff about what he trains,
whet her or not soneone who is already handcuffed shoul d be taken
down and put into leg restraints. He asserted that soneone who
dies in a simlar way maybe fine for everyone else, but having
sonmeone die was not fine and the departnent could do better than
that. He set forth that the reasons why the situation |ike M.
Kobuck's happens is due an over-stressed system that forces
officers to work overtine, polices are not updated for 20 to 25
years, training is not done regularly with enployees, and the
end result 1is danger increases in all of the departnent's
systens. He pointed out that he never has vilified or blamed the
officers for a whole series of issues that have occurred. He set
forth that he has disagreed with people holding on to the
position that what happened to M. Kobuck could happen again. He
pointed out that people in the training acadeny and other |aw
enforcement personnel have said there are ways of handling
people so that people do not have to die; that was his goal
along with not vilifying or people when things go wong. He
summari zed that he respectively disagreed wth Senator
W el echowski's premse and stated that his intent was for the
departnment to go in a substantially different place.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- April 5, 2016



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI reiterated that Comm ssioner WIIlians
stated in his report that, "There does not appear to have been a
clear and imrediate safety threat such as an assault or

attenpted escape to warrant the level of force wused." He
repeated that the video involving M. Kobuck did not include the
audio where he threatened to kill the officers. He asked

Comm ssioner WIllians to comrent on whether including the audio
woul d have been a relevant factor for the public.

10: 43: 55 AM

COW SSIONER W LLIAMS replied that regarding the issue of
whet her or not M. Kobuck was threatening officers, he pointed
out that people cone in all of the tinme that threaten and call
officers racial slurs. He reiterated that M. Kobuck was
handcuffed behind his back. He noted that M. Kobuck was in the
medi cal area beforehand and grudgingly cooperated, but he
refused to blow into the intoxinmeter. He pointed out that M.
Kobuck announced that he had a nedical condition involving
cardi onyopathy. He stated that if Senator Welechowski did not
beli eve him whether soneone handcuffed should be taken down in
the fashion M. Kobuck was taken down, he asked that Senator
Wel echowski talk to the FBI agent and talk to Mark Mw,
[fornmer] Anchorage chief of police. He asserted that he did not
t hi nk soneone has to die who's in a situation |like M. Kobuck.

He explained that recordings were not tracked during his review
because sone roons had audio and sone roonms did not. He admtted
that he did not consider the audio to be a relevant factor. He
asserted that in hindsight he would consider the audio to be
relevant due to the fuss being raised, but also because a
specter of suspicion was caused. He said he would have done
things very differently if he had any idea the audio was going
to be an issue. He disclosed that Lieutenant Wckoff reviewed
the audio and remarked that the person yelling was not M.
Kobuck.

He summarized that he did a very difficult review knowi ng that
his report was going to be criticized for no matter what was
found. He set forth that he and M. Hanlon |ooked very closely
at the incident involving M. Kobuck, but asserted that they did
t he best job they coul d.

10: 46: 37 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOABKI addressed the take-down of M. Kobuck and
noted that the Departnent of Corrections' policies and

procedures require that inmates being incarcerated renove their
clothes and be strip searched. He revealed that M. Kobuck

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- April 5, 2016



refused to take off his clothes, fought wth officers and
threatened to kill them He set forth that corrections officers
were caught in a "Catch 22" situation of either violating policy
or taking M. Kobuck down. He asked Commi ssioner WIIlians what
he expected the corrections officers to do in their situation
with M. Kobuck.

SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI reiterated that the Departnment of Law
investigated the incident wwth M. Kobuck and found no violation
what soever. He disclosed that the coroner that investigated M.

Kobuck found that there was no accident, no positiona
asphyxi ation, no homcide, no suicide and the manner of death
was undetermned. He set forth that stating, "Excessive force
was used and not having a clear and immediate threat,"” was

extraordinarily inflammatory to the corrections officers who put
their lives on the line every single day. He pointed out that
the corrections officers followed the policies to-a-T and not a
single one was disciplined for the incident with M. Kobuck

10: 48: 37 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS commented that he would |abel the situation with
the Departnment of Corrections as "Personnel Mnagenent 101." He
encouraged the comittee nenbers not to wade through the
adm nistrative review and try to figure out who is right or
wong. He set forth that Comm ssioner WIllianms has the
credentials, but was hindered by doing his review prior to the
governor's appoi ntnent announcenent. He summarized that the
current question pertained to confidence and not conpetence. He
set forth that the governor has to make a decision whether
Conmi ssioner WIllians can close the divide between the work
force and the comm ssioner. He asked what Conm ssioner WIIians
has done since his nom nation to reduce the divide.

10: 53: 26 AM
COWM SSI ONER W LLI AMS concurred that he has felt the burden of
doing a review and then finding hinself in his current position.

SENATOR HUGA NS conmented that the process was wunfair to
Comm ssioner WIIians.

COM SSIONER  WLLIAMS replied that he appreciated Senator
Huggi ns, but noted that his conviction was the reason why he was
positioned in his current spot. He conceded that the past few
nonths have been difficult, but he would not change it. He
remar ked that the governor asked him to be comm ssioner because
of his vision for what needed to happen in a particular tine. He
specified that part of his vision was the healing of

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 5, 2016



relati onships which has occurred. He admtted that t he
rel ati onshi p between the comm ssioner and sonme enpl oyees has not
been good for a very long tine.

COWM SSI ONER W LLI AMS set forth that two things have to be done
about inproving the relationship: bringing people forward that
have the confidence of enployees and for the conm ssioner to
spend tine at each correctional facilities. He stated that he
did not care whether or not he was the best conm ssioner for the
departnment, but he did care about what the mssion was and its
di rection.

He summarized that the issues that happen in another situation
like M. Kobuck and the departnent wal ks away and says, "W did
better than that you guys, good job, soneone didn't die in that
situation, good job,” and the staff can see that's what the
focus is versus hanging people out to dry or doing sonething;
that was where he was at and he would not be going through the
confirmation process if that was not where his head and heart
was.

10: 57: 26 AM

SENATOR COGHILL stated that he wanted to associate hinmself wth
the remarks that Senator Huggins brought up. He stated that in
order to nove forward the people in the corrections system have
to work wth Commssioner WIlliams. He opined that huge
differences were made evident during the commttee neeting and
he questioned whether the neeting was the right place to do
that. He commented that the huge differences of opinion and sone
pretty clear accusations were either msstatenents or out and
out lies that need to be dealt with. He stated that the |oop has
to be closed between the |eadership and the people who do the
work within the institution. He set forth that |egislators have
to continually look at the confidence |evel and whether the
departnment can in fact nove forward. He stated that the
departnment was at a critical point where the tension of not
havi ng enough staff to carry out what was currently mandated. He
said prisons were not going away and managenent has to happen.
He asked Conm ssioner Wllians if he was willing to try to close
the loop and noted that noving forward would not occur wthout
his willingness to nove forward.

11: 00: 33 AM

COW SSI ONER W LLIAMS replied that Senator Coghill's statenent
was accurate. He noted that at the onset of his review he nade a
statenent that ultinmately addressed the entire closing-the-Ioop
where his goal was to seek justice. He explained that seeking

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- April 5, 2016



justice neant wal king hunbly through the review experience. He
admtted that he did not bring all of the know edge to the
departnent that was required to nove forward. He set forth that
nmoving forward required people near him that possessed great
experiences, so the relationship factor was huge to him

COM SSIONER W LLIAMS admitted that a |ot of damage was done
prior to his appointnment and noted that he knew airing the dirty
| aundry would be a sore point. He disclosed that his intent with
every union was to neet with all of themat the sane tine if he
was confirmed. He acknow edged that his report and confirmation
process addressed di sagreenents that occurred. He explained that
his job as conmm ssioner was to work through the rel ationships,
have people wunderstand that he was open to change wthout
interest in lording over them and to be open to finding the
right |eaders who can lead their sections. He noted that he has
a good relationship with the Board of Parole and his job was to
help them do their job. He opined that |eadership was a conplete
exercise in humlity everywhere down the line. He set forth that
he has set a vision for how the department can do better than
what was done in the past. He said he wants anyone that can cone
along to help himwth his vision by providing their input and
identifying the things to address first. He specified that
nmoving forward was a "team process and not a Dean process.”

He stated that he was very happy and admtted that he may not
sound happy during the comrittee neeting. He asserted that he
was very happy wth the progress that has been nade. He
di sclosed that he has received tremendous praise from people
within the departnent. He noted that he received positive
feedback from the visits he has made to various correctional
facilities and promsed that he would neke nore after the
| egi sl ati ve session.

He summari zed that people have to know that you are out for the
best interest. He admitted that sone people know that he is out
for the best interest and sone do not, but he knew what he was
goi ng to do.

SENATOR COGHILL pointed out that the corrections guards'
integrity "took a pretty good hit" from Comm ssioner WIIians'
report and the Legislature would have to see sonme closing of the
di sagreenent noving forward. He declared that just because the
job was hard does not nean the job could not be done. He stated
that high norale for corrections officers was inportant and he
was desperately trying provide relief both in the jail
popul ations and the nethodologies. He summarized that the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 5, 2016



current issue was personnel related and the Legislature would
| ook and |isten that Comm ssioner WIIlians was cl osing the | oop.

11: 05: 37 AM

SENATOR MCGUI RE commented that she agreed with a lot of the
coorments that were made. She asked that corrections workers in
attendance be acknow edged and called attention to the hard job
t hey had. She noted that she agreed with Conmm ssioner WIIians'
notation on his |letterhead, "Walking Al aska's toughest beat."

She pointed out that Chair Stoltze, Senator Coghill and she have
been involved in peeling back the layers of problens wth
corrections for a long time. She noted that based upon her
di scussi ons W th previ ous Depar t ment of Corrections
comi ssioners, conplaints and concerns have been building for a
long time prior to Conm ssioner WIlIlians' report. She pointed
out that she held hearings several years ago to address issues
of norale and training. She recalled one instance where two
corrections officers were afraid to testify wunder oath and
al nost backed out. She detailed that the two officers served for
over 20 years and recounted the decline in training where new
hirees went from 60 hours of training down to a couple of hours
after a waiting period. She said the two corrections officers
felt the lack of training left them vul nerable and unsafe. She
added that the two <corrections officers testified about
overcrowdi ng, drug dealing inside the prisons and m sconduct by
fellow officers. She revealed that the two officers did not fee

they had a safe place to make their conplaint. She said the two
of ficers remarked that the Departnment of Corrections was w thout
a real vision plan on how growth would be carried out.

She recalled that the Legislature was investigated by the FBI in
the md-2000s and opined that the legislators that were
ultimately cleared knew that the culture need changing. She
asserted that she enbraced the need for change and encouraged
the people in the room to consider her actions. She concurred
with Senator Coghill that public corrections should be nmade to
Comm ssioner WIIlians' report where inaccuracies occurred;
however, the report highlighted places where there clearly was
reprehensi ble conduct that would not be known wthout the
report. She set forth that saying Commi ssioner WIIlians was not
qualified to be conm ssioner because there was ire, discontent
or enbarrassnment about things uncovered by the report was w ong.
She remarked that the conmssioner for the Departnent of
Corrections is not just accountable to the enployees, but to the
people of the State of Al aska. She asserted that what has been
happening in the state's prisons was unacceptable. She avowed

SENATE STA COW TTEE -27- April 5, 2016



that she did not blanme the nmen and wonen in the commttee room
and noted that some in attendance had been the first people that
came to her to ask for nore support and the need for nore
training. She set forth that, "Conm ssioner Wllians is the man,
in ny opinion, that has been asked to do it and will do it." She
asked that corrections officers walk into their negotiations and
nmeetings to just stop and think about the legislative
i nvestigation exanple that she gave.

SENATOR MCQUIRE opined that a culture shift in a different
direction has occurred regarding |legislative and | aw enforcenent
ternms. She opined that many corrections officers have come up in
the ranks with a "warring" or "protect oneself" nentality;
however, she pointed out that there were also places where
corrections officers can be a guardian of public values where
t hi ngs can be encountered differently through training.

She set forth that Comm ssioner WIllianms was an Al askan who felt
that the Departnment of Corrections was his departnment where
every life mtters. She stated that she was grateful that
Comm ssioner WIllianms was staying in the fight.

11:12: 29 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE comrented that he appreciated the sentinent that
all lives matter. He noted that safety concerns for corrections

officers was at a boiling point because of nany personnel issues
and incredible challenges. He concurred that corrections have a
tough beat to walk and opined that their arm of the
adm nistration of justice was the nost challenging with few
constituencies due to the eagerness to reduce prison costs. He
remarked that prisons were expensive because they provided the
things that were constitutionally required through a series of
court cases and were also expensive because of officer safety.
He remarked that the Departnment of Corrections has unarned
personnel that were far outnunbered where an incredible anount
of judgenent, trust, and norale were critical. He opined that
guns cannot replace what good nanagenent will acconplish because
it just would never work.

He asked Conmi ssioner Wllians to fornmally introduce his staff.
11:14: 20 AM

COW SSI ONER W LLI AMS identified his staff nenbers and comment ed
as foll ows:

 Lieutenant Wckoff, Supervisor for the Al aska Departnment of
Corrections Trai ni ng Acadeny.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 5, 2016



e Bruce Busby, Director of Institutions, formally ran Lenobn
Creek Correctional Center.

e Clare Sullivan (online), Deputy Conm ssioner, formally ran
the maxi num security facility at Spring Creek in Seward.

* April WIkerson, Director for the Al aska Departnent of
Corrections-Adm ni strative Services.

COW SSIONER W LLIAMS stated that teammork matters, including
the teammork wth enployees. He said while there may be
di sagreenents about what certain things, he wll continue to
listen and take everything very seriously. He set forth that he
would walk every day in humlity about leading a very large
organi zation. He asked that the Legislature and everyone in the
room hel p hi m because singly he won't be able to do it.

11:16: 00 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE announced that he would like to recognize the
"public safety warriors” who work in anonymty behind the walls.
He asked that the correctional officers in the room standup for
the committee to acknowl edge them He said he thanked the
correctional officers for their often unseen role in the
adm nistration of justice. He noted that the correctional
officers had taken their day off to be part of the public
process. He thanked the commttee and remarked that the neeting
was the nost substantive confirmation hearing that the commttee
has ever had. He opined that Commi ssioner WIlianms might take
something from the fact that rarely has there been a tinme when
all commttee nenbers have been engaged in the discussion as
wel | as there being so much public interest.

11:17: 22 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Conmttee at
11:17 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -29- April 5, 2016



